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ABOUT MEDICINOVA, INC _ o

- MediciNova is a blopharmaceutlcal company that llcenses—from Japanese and other international
pharmaceutical compames—well -characterized smalt’ molecules with broad patent protection to accelerate
their development within a diversified portfolic of therapeutlc product candidates. By leveraging the
portfolio effect of a relatively large pipeline, the Company will, depending on triat results, conduct pivotal
clinical trials in pursuit of commercialization or seek develop:ment partners to fund pivotal trials and
marketing. MediciNova's pipeline now includes eight molecules in development for ten medical indications
representing significant markets. Six of those drugs are in human clinical development for eight
indications. Founded in September 2000, and located in San Diego, California, MediciNova has been listed
since December 2006 on the Nasdag Glabal Exchange (Sym[bol: MNOV) and since February 2005 on the
Hercules Market of the Osaka Securities Exchange [Code Nleber: 4875).
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MN-001 (Bronchlal Asthma]

MN-166 {Multiple Sclerosis}

MN-305 [Anxiety Disorders/Insomnia)
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MN-001 {Interstitial Cystitis)

MN-221 [Status Asthmaticus)

MN-221 (Pren;grm Labor) . I )

MN-029 (Solid Tumiors}

MN-246 (Urinary Incontinence)

MN-447 & MN-462 (Thrombosis} -




_industry partners.

To Our Fellow Stockholders;

Through this, MediciNova’s first stockholder letter as a dual-listed company, we are very pleased to welcome our
new American investors and to welcome back our Japanesé investors, some of whom have been stockho!ders
since the company listed on the Osaka Exchange in 2005, :

On December 7, 2006 MediciNova was listed on the Nasdaq Global Market under the symbol MNOV..In
February 2007 the company closed its first U.S. public offering, of one million shares at $12 per share, raising
aggregate net proceeds of U.S. $10.5 million dollars.

We founded MediciNova with the goal of using our unique knowledge of the Japanese pharmaceuticai industry,

language and culture to acquire promising compounds on favorable terms for worldwide development. Through

implementation of this goal; we have licensed in molecules with strong patent positions, preclinical or early
clinical data and multiple-indication potential in significant markets.

Our business model could be called “reverse outsourcing:” capitalizing on the efficient development capabilities
of an American enterprise to add value to a growing pipeline of drug candidates. The strategy is to rapidly
advance multiple compounds through proof-of-concept Phase ILI1I trials. We will leverage our portfolio,
advancing some of these drugs toward the market ourselves, while out-licensing others to pharmaceutical

To date, we have raised over $200 million to build a pipeline of éight molecules in development for ten medical
indications. Six drugs are in human clinical development for eight indications. We encourage you to read the
attached annual report for details on progress of all of the programs Jaunched since our founding. This letter will
focus on two programs that we believe have high potential for success in treating respiratory diseases.

MN-001 is a potential first-line oral therapy to control bronchial asthma licensed from Kyorin Pharmaceutical.
Asthma treatment is a large and growing target dominated by inhaled steroids and bronchodilators. The late
1990s saw the introduction of oral controller medicines, such as the leukotriene antagonists, that have captured a’
24% market share. Worldwide sales of the leading leukotriene antagonist were $3.6 billion in 2006, a 20%
increase over 2005,

MN-001 combines the positive attributes of leukotriene antagonists and inhaled steroids with an acceptable
clinical safety profile. We believe it has blockbuster potential in asthma,

Preclinical studies showed that MN-001 inhibits the airway hyper-reactivity that causes bronchoconstriction.
Four Phase I and 11 clinical studies on a tota) of 189 subjects showed that MN-001 was well tolerated at up to
2000 mg a day with no serious side effects. In 2005, we completed a double-blind Phase II trial in 147 patients.
Professor William Busse of the University of Wisconsin presented findings of the Phase II study on February 24,
2007 at the American Academy of Allergy Asthma & Immunology meeting.




Based on those results, we advanced MN-001 into Phase III in asthma in November 2006. The first Pbase I1I triat
will involve approximately 705 subjects enrelled at up to 90 clinical snes in the United States. We expect to
complete this study in the second half of 2008. : :

W
MN-221 is a highly selective Bz-adrenergic receptor agonist licensed from Kissei Pharmaceutical Co. Status
" asthmaticus is a long-lasting, severe asthma episode that does not respond to initial inhaled therapy. Inhated
B-agonists are the primary treatment for these attacks, but in severe cases, intravenous therapy may be necessary.

Despite treatment improvements over the past 20 years, there has been only minimal decrease in asthma
hospitalizations or deaths. We seek to meet this need with MN-221 in an intravenous (IV) formulation .
appropriate for hospital use. It confers immediate benefit against severe bronchoconstriction, with fewer
cardiovascular side effects than the older B-agonists.

MediciNova initiated a Phase II program in December 2006, 'I'his"p]acebo controlled, dose-escalating study will
evaluate the effects of one or two 15-minute treatments with IV MN-22t in mild-to- moderate asthma subjects as
measured by change in FEV1. We jexpect results in 2007. i

Additional development accompl:shments in 2006 and early 2007. included:

+ Completing a 416- patlent Phase II/III study of MN- 305\ in Genera]med Anxiety Disorder. Results
showed a positive trend, leading us to initiate a Phase 11 insomnia study of MN-305 in January of 2007.

+  Presenting MN-029 Phase I tumor blood flow reduction results at the American Society of Clinical
Oncology meeting. '

= Initiating a Phase | smdy of MN-246 as an oral trealmem for urinary incontinence.

« Completing enrollment of a 297-patient Phase II trial of MN-166 in multiple sclcros:s patients. We
expect to unblind this study in the first quarter of 2007

\ o 4 . ..
*  Acquiring two novel antithrombotic agents; MN-447 and MN-462, now in preclinical development,
from Meiji Seika Kaisha, Lid. .

. . ’ f .
Building our executive ranks, we appointed Masatsune Okajima as Vice President to manage our Japanese office.

To assist our transition to a US public company, we promoted Shintaro Asako to Vice President and CFO; and
hired Bonnie Feldman, DDS, as Vice President of Investor Rclatin‘ons and Corporate Communications. Three
experienced executives joined our Board of Directors: Jeff Himawan, Ph.D.; Arlene M. Morris and Alan W.
Dunton, M.D.

L.ooking back, 2006 has been a year of d:Ilgcm work and sngmﬁc@mt progress We expect 2007 lo be equa.lly
productwe and excmng

Thank yoﬁ for your support of our efforts.

Sincerely, R ) i

Yuichi Iwaki, M.D., Ph.D. ' |
Chairman and CEO - | . ‘
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Summary Information

!

Our Business " |

We are a biopharmaceutical company.focused on acquiring zlmd developing novel, small molecule
therapeutics. Through strategic alliances primarily with Japanese pharmaceutical companies, we are developing a
diversified portfolio of product candidates, each of which we believe has patent protection, a wetl-characterized

- and differentiated therapeutic proﬁle and attractive commerc:la] potemlal

To date, we have acquired license rights relating to eight compounds for the development of ten product
candidates, representing what we believe are large and undemerved markets. Qur pipeline includes eight
programs in active clinical testing, ‘for the treatment of asthma, status asthmaticus, multiple sclerosis, interstitial
cystitis, solid tumor cancer, Generalized Anxiety Disorder, preterin labor and urinary incontinence. Our earlier
stage programs consist of a treatment for urinary incontinence, whlch recently entered clinical testing, and two
product candidates, which relate to thrombotic disorders, which are in preclinical development. Qur strategy is to
advance our clinical programs through the Phase 11 proof-of-concept stage or beyond and, at appropriate points of
high-value inflection, to establish strategic alliances and partnerships to support Phase 11 clinical testing and
commercialization of selected development programs. We may a]so retain full development and
commercialization rights to certain of our compounds, [ .

We believe that our ability to identify potentially high value product candidates, combined with our business
model, can accelerate entry into the clinical development process:in the United States or Europe and provide us |
with a competitive advantage. We typically acquire product candidates with extensive safety and efficacy data
that are in late preclinical or early clinical development, and in some instances have been commercialized in
Japan for other indications. We utilize existing data in preparing mvesugauonaj new drug, or IND, appllcatlonq
.or foreign equivalents and in designing additional clinical trials.

We believe that our ability to gain access to and acquire poténtially high-value product candidates from
Japanese and European pharmaceutical companies is largely attributable to the established relationships and
broad industry experience of our global management team. In pamcular our relanonshlps with Japanese
pharmaceutical companies and executives provide us with a competitive advantage in opportunistically sourcing
product candidates from Japanese pharmaceutical companies at attractive terms. We also intend to build a strong
portfolio of product candidates through relationships with large and mid-sized North American and European
biotechnology and pharmaceutical companies, Since our inception, we have established relationships with a )
number of pharmaceutical conipanies, including Kissei Pharmaceitical, Kyorin Pharmaceutical, Mitsubishi
Pharma Corporation and Meiji Seika Kaisha, Ltd. in Japan and Angiogene Pharmaceuticals in the United
Kingdom, pursuant to which we have obtained rights to develop and market compounds. '

Our development programs include:
« . [MN-001 for the treatment of bronchial asthma, which has completed Phase 11 testing and for which we
initiated a Phase III clinical program in the fourth quarter of 2006;

» MN-221 for the treatment of status asthmaticus, for which we initiated a Phase II clinical trial in the
fourth quarter of 2006;

+  MN-166 for the treatment of multiple sclerosis, which is in a two year randomized, double-blind,
placebo-controlled multi-center Phase II clinical trial in eastern Europe, and for which enroliment was
completed in early 2006. One year results are anticipated in the first quarter of 2007;

*  MN-001 for the treatment of iqtcrstitial cystitis, for which-we completed a Phase IV/I11 clinical triat in
first quarter of 2007; - '



+«  MN-029 for the treatment of solid tumors, for which we currently have one Phase I clinical trial
ongoing in the United States and have completed one Phase | clinical trial during the second quarter of
2006, and for which we plan to initiate Phase /111 studies in ovarian and non-small cell lung solid
tumor cancers in the first quarter of 2007; ' '

»  MN-305 for the treatment of Generalized Anxiety Disorder, for which we completed a Phase II/III -
clinical trial during the second quarter of 2006 (in addition, our licensor of MN-305 has completed an
early Phase H clinical trial for anxiety disorders in Japan)

+  MN-305 for the treatment of insomnia, for which we initiated a Phase I chmcal trml during the first
quarter of 2007;

'e MN-22i for the treatment of preterm labor, for which a Phase Ib clinical study to investigate thc
pharmacokinetic profile of MN-221 in healthy pregnant women was initiated in the third quarter of
2006 (in addition, our licensor of MN-221 has obtained data from a Phase 11 clinical trial in Europe)

»  MN-246 for the treatment of urinary incontinence, for which we compteted a double-blind,
randomized, placebo-controlled, single escalating dose Phase 1 clinical trial in healthy volunteers in
December 2006 and for which we completed dosing.in a Phase 1 food effects study i in the first quarter
of 2007

. MN-447 for the treatment of thrombotic disorders, which is in precllnlca] developmem and
*  MN-462 for the treatment of thrombotlc disorders, which is in preclmlca] development.
We have assembled a management team with extensive experience in the pharmaceutical and biotechndlogy

industry, including experience in préclinical research, drug substance and product preparation, regulalory affairs,
clinical research and corporate development. We believe that our managcmem team has the expertise necessary

for:
. asseésing‘product opportunities;
* acquiring product candidates and compounds;
+ advancing products through the clinical and regulatory processes; and
'. .+ building product development alliances and bringing products to market.
Our Strategy

Our goal is to build a sustainable biopharmaceutical business through the successful development and
commercialization of differentiated products for the treatment of dnseascs with unmet medical needs in high-
value therapeutic areas. Key elements of our strategy are to:

» Develop our diversiﬁed pipeline of existing pmduc: candidates to maximize value. We have acquired a’
portfolio of novel, high-quality small molecule therapeutics and/or their uses that are based on proven
pharmacology and have differentiating characteristics from available treatments. We intend to advance
our ¢linical programs through the Phase I proof-of-concept stage and, at appropriate points of high-
value inflection, we may establish strategic alliances and partnerships to suppont Phase I1I clinical
testing and commercialization of selected development programs.

s Partner selectively with larger pharmaceutical companies to maximize the potential of our product

* candidares. We intend 10 actively pursue strategic collaborations to draw on the development,
regulatory and commercialization expertise of larger biotechnology and pharmaceutical partners. We
also intend to continue to seek potential co-marketing partners and potential future acquirers of license
rights to our programs in markets outside the United States, with the goal of retaining significant
commercial participation in these product opportunities.

2
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*  Opportunistically in-license additional product candidates through our global industry relagionships.
We intend to expand our pipeline of promising in-licensed product candidates over-the long term by
continuing to cultivate dnd strengthen our business relationships with pharmaceutical companies in
Japan and other markets. We believe our ability to acquire product candidates with high potential and
extensive preclinical or early clinical data from Japanese pharmaceutical companies provides us with a
competitive advantage over other drug development companies in the U.S. market. We believe that
additional diversification and expansion of our pipeline of product candidates will help maximize the
commercial opportunity and mitigate the risks inherentgin drug discovery and development.

»  Selectively udd convwnercial capabilities as our development programs mature. To ensure our ability to
build a sustainable business, we plan to add capabilities to our management team to support our
evolution into a commercial entity. We may develop oﬁr own marketing and sales organization to
promote certain of our product candidates. ' '



Selected Cdnsolidated Financial Data.

. may not be indicative of future operating results. The following selected financial data should be read in
" conjunction with the Consolidated Financial Statements and notes thereto and “Management’s Discussion and
Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations” included elsewhere herein. Amounts are in

‘ The selected financial data set forth below is derived from our audited consolidated financial statements and
|

|

|

| thousands, except per share amounts.

|

Period from

. September 26,
! , ’ Years ended December 31, i%;ﬁﬁ?%’;{
| 2006 2005 2004 2003 2002 . 2006
Statements of Operations '
Data: ’ ‘ :
Revenues ............. .8 264 804 $ 49 $ — $ — % 1558
; . Operating expenses: ' o o R _
Cost of revenues .. ... , 147 674 . 438 . — — 1,258
Research and ' . )
development . ... ... 32,171 22,738 11,317 4,723 5,551 77,724
General and R . ' .
" administrative .. ... 9,624 7.479 37,348 1,538 1,462 58,515
Total operating expenses . . . T 41,942 30,891 49103 6,261 7013 . 137,497
Operatingloss ........... (41,678) (30,088) (48.613)  (6,261) (7,013) (135,939)
Other income, net ........ 5,988 4,396 340 52 82 11,147
Netloss ................ ©(35,690) - (25,692) (48,273)  (6,209) (6,931} (124,792)
Accretion to redemption a : .
value of redeemable
convertible preferred . ) o
stock ... — 20y (79 - — (98)
. Deemed dividend resulting ) .
' from beneficial ] '

- conversion on Series C
' ' redeemable convertible . ‘ o
- preferred stock . ........ — - (31,264) —_— — . (31,264

Net loss applicable to _ ’ :
common stockholders ... $ (35690) $ (25,712) § (79,616} § (6,209) § (6931) - $(156,154)

" Basic and diluted net loss
pershare .............. $ (352) $  (2.88) $(1,592.32) $(124.18) $(138.62)

Shares used to compute
basic and diluted net loss
pershare(l) ........... 10,130,920 8,928,533 50,000 . 50,000 50,000

(1) As a result of the conversion of our preferred stock into 6,678,285 shares of our common stock upon
completion of our 1PO in February 2005, there is a lack of comparability in the basic and diluted net loss per
share amounts for the periods.presented above. Please refer to Note 1 for the pro forma basic and diluted net
loss per hare calculations for the periods presented. ' '




As of Decemﬁer 31,

2006 2005 2004 2003 - 2002
Balance Sheet Data: ) '
Cash, cash equivalents dnd marketable securities . ! o :
available-for-sale .................. T $ 104,051 $138701 $30801 § 5491 $ 1,281
Working capital ................... ...l 100,102 134,633 '48\;704 - 4,838 876
CTotal assets ... 111,591 -142,394 53,769 5,631 1,586
. Redeemable convertible preferred stock ............. — — 43,483 S
Deficit accumulated during the development stage . ...  (156,154) (120,465) (94,753) (15.137) (8,928)
Total stockholders’ equity ..... ... ... ... ... ... 100,981 135,708 7,669 4570 1,122

Management’s Discussion and Analysns of Fmanc:al Condlt:on and Results of Operations

---  The following d:scusszan contains forward-looking smremems which involve mks and uncertainties. Our
actual results could differ materially from those anticipated in these forward-looking statements as a result of
various factors, including those set forth in our Annual Report ori Form 10-K under the caption “ltem 1A.—Risk
Factors.” This Management's Discussion and Analysis of F. manLI:al Condition and Results of Operations should
be read in conjunction with our cgnsohdated Jfinancial statements and related notes included elsewhere in this -
repont. ‘ : : St

Overview and Recent Developments

We are a biopharmaceutical company focused on acquiring ?nd developing novel, small molecule
therapeutics. Through strategic alliances primarily with Japanese'pharmaceutical companies, we are developing a
diversified portfolio of product candidates, each of which we believe has broad patent protection, a well-
characterized and differentiated therapeutic profile and attractive commercial potential.

We are a development stage company. We have incurred significant net losses since our inception. At .

~ December 31, 2006, our accumulated deficit was approximately $156.2 million, including $36.8 million of
non-cash stock-based compensatlon charges related to employee stock-based compensation and founders’
warrants. We expect to incur substantial net losses for the nexi several years as we continue to develop our
existing programs and over the long-term as we expand our research and development programs and acquire or
in-license products, technologles or businesses that are complementary 1o our own.

Our development programs consist of:
l‘r
»  MN-00] for the treatment of bronchial asthma, which has completed Phase II testing and for which we
initiated a Phase III clinical program in the fourth quaner of 2006;

«  MN-221 for the treatment of status asthmaticus; for which we initiated a Phase II clinical trial in the
fourth quarter of 2006;

*  MN-166 for the treatment of multiple sclerosis, which i is in a two year randomized, double-blind,
]
- placebo-controlled multi-center Phase 11 clinical trial i lq eastern Europe, and for which enrollment was
completed in early 2006. One year results are anticipated in the first quarter of 2007;

= MN-001 for the treatment of interstitial cystitis; for which we completed a Phasc ILII clinical trial in
the first quarter of 2007;

= MN-029 for the treatment of solid tumors, for which we currently have one Phase I clinical trial
ongoing in the United States and have completed one Bhase 1 clinical trial during the second quarter of
2006, and for which we plan to initiate Phase 1L/111 sludles in ovarian and non-small cell lung solid
tumor cancers in the first quarter of 2007;

»  MN-305 for the treatment of Generalized Anxiety Disorder, for which we completed a Phase 11/111
clinical trial during the second quarter of 2006 (in addition, our licensor on MN-305 has completed an
early Phase I chinical trial for anxiety disorders in Japan);

E |
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*  MN-305 for the treatment of insomnia, for which we initiated a Phase I clinical trial during the first
quarter of 2007; '

= -MN-22] for the treatment of preterm labor, for which a Phase Ib clinical study to investigate the
pharmacokinetic profile of MN-221 in healthy pregnant women was initiated in the thirll quarter of
2006 (in addition, our licensor of MN-221 has obtained data from a Phase 11 clinical trial in Europe);

- »  MN-246 for the treatment of urinary incontinence, for which a double-blind, randomizeﬂ, placebo-
controlled, single escalating dose Phase I clinical triai in healthy volunteers has completed in the fourth
quarter of 2006, a Phase 1 food effects study was completed in the first quarter of 2007,

¢ MN-447 for the treatment of thrombotic disorders, which is in preclinical developmént; and
"+ MN-462 for the treatment of thrombotic disorders, which is in preclinical development.

On October 31, 2006, we acquired two novel small molecule cardiovascular agents from Meiji Seika
Kaisha, Ltd. (Tokyo, Japan). These two néw compounds, MN-447 and MN-462, are antithrombic (anti-clotting) ‘
agents that represent novel approaches to blood clot formation-and lysis, respectively, and are expected to treat a ] i
variety of thrombotic disorders. The upfront fees and license fees are not expected to be material. 1

~ Effective October, 31, 2006 and pursuant to a reverse stock split approved by our stockholders and our
Board of Directors, each ten shares of issued and outstanding common stock were combined into and became one
share of common stock and no fractional shares were issued. The accompanying consolidated financial
statements and related disclosures give effect to the reverse stock split for all periods presented. -

Effective November 24, 2006, our Board of Directors adopted our stockholder rights plan. Under the plan,
we declared a dividend distribution of one “Right” for each outstanding share of our common stock to
stockholders of record at the close of business on Decemtber i1, 2006. Since that time, we have issued one Right
‘with each newly issued share of common stock. Each Right, when exercisable, entitles the holder to purchase
from us one one-thousandth of a share of our Series A Preferred Stock at a purchase price of $77.00. In general,
under the plan, if a person or affiliated group acquires beneficial ownership of 20% or more of our shares of
common stock, then each Right (other than those held by such acquiring person or affiliated group) will entitle
the holder 1o receive, upon exercise, shares of common stock {or, under certain circumstances, a combination of
securities or other assets) having a value of twice the underlying purchase price of the Right. In addition, if
following the announcement of the existence of an acquiring person or affiliated group we are involved in a
business combination or sale of 50% or more of our assets or earning power, each Right (other than those held by
the acquiring person or affiliated group) will entitle the holder to receive, upon exercise, shares of commen stock
of the acquiring entity having a value of twice the underlying purchase price of the Right. The Board of Directors
also has the right, after an acquiring person or affiliated group is identified, to cauvse each Right to be exchanged .
for common stock or substitute consideration. We may redeem the Rights at a price of $0.001 per Right prior to !
the identification of an acquiring person or affiliated group. The Rights expire on November 23, 2016. ' '

On January 16, 2007, we announced results of a Phase 1I/111 clinical trial of MN-001 in interstitial cystitis,
or IC. Trial results indicated that, while MN-001 was well-tolerated, it did not show a siatistically significant
clinical benefit compared to placebo on the primary endpoint (to be much or very much improved overall on a
patient-rated Global Response Assessment) at the doses tested in this trial (500 mg once or twice a day for 8
weeks), Results from this Phase IV/III trial indicated that 1C patients were more than twice as likely to respond on
500 mg of MN-001 administered twice a day compared to placebo (25% compared to 12%, p=0.04) after 4 weeks
of treatment. This difference, however, was not observed at 8 weeks due to continued improvement among
placebo-treated patients. The response rate of patients treated with 500 mg of MN-001 once a day did not
significantly differ from placebo a1 either 4 or § weeks.

On January 29, 2007, we announced a public offering of 1,000,000 shares of common stock at a purchase
price of $12.00 per share. On February 1, 2007 the public offering closed. The aggregate net proceeds were
approximately $10.5 million, net of underwriting discounts and commissions and certain other costs associated
with the offering.




Revenues and Cost of Revenues . _ I .

b
! '

We have not generated any 1 revenues from licensing, milestones or product sales to date and we do not

expect to generate any revenues from the commercialization of 6ur product candidates wrthm the next 12
months. Our revenues to date have been generated from development management contracts under the master

' service agreements with Asahi Kasei Pharma Corporation and Argenes Inc. under which we bill consulting fees

and our pass-through clinical contract costs. The primary cost associated with our revenue is the clinical contract
costs we incur and pass-through to our customer. We do not expect to generate any revenue from our
development management contracts over the next 12 months. !

[
H

' . o

_ Research and Development _ i

Our research and development expenses primarily consist df costs associated with the feasibility studies,
licensing and pre-clinical and clinical developmenit of our eight licensed compounds, three of which we are
developing for the treatment of two separate indications. These research and development expenses include
external costs, such as fees paid to consultants and related contract research, and internal costs of compensation
and other expenses for research and developrriem personnel, supplies, materials, facility costs and depreciation.

To the extent that costs, including personinel costs, are not tracked to a specific product development
program, they are included in the “Unallocated” category in the lable below. We charge all research and
development expenses to operauons as lncurred

The following summarizes our research and development expenses for the periods indicated {in thousands):

' Product . Years ended December 31,
Candidate Dlsease! Indication ' 2006 2005 2004
MN-00] Bronchial asthma ,......................... e $ 6,013 $ 3,739 $ 1,570
MN-221  Status ASRMaticus .. .. ..........o..iioeeeiidon, 814 -4
MN-166 Multiple Scler051s, ” ...... 7.965 ‘ 3,391 634
MN-001 Interstitial cysutls PP -+ 2,637 3,565 228
MN-029 Solidtumor . ................ NP 4,359 1,697 2,393
MN-305 Generalized Anxiety Disorder . ....... ... ... ..... 3,486 - 4,858 1,939
MN-305  Insomnia ....... e - 249 — —
MN-221 Premature labor ......... ... . .. .. ... .. v 618 1,253 1,863
MN-246  Urinary incontinence ............................. 3,708 1,647 527
MN-447 Thrombotic disorders . ..... P 407 —. -—
MN-462  Thrombotic disorders . ................. SN S T 406 — _—
soccC Cancer; Inflammatory diseases ..............0...... 24 . 145 167
. Unallocated .................. S S 1,485 2,443 1,996

Total research and development . ......... ... ... .. .. ... ... .. $32,171 ~$22,738 $11,317

While currently we are focused on advancing each of our product development programs, we anticipate that
we will make determinations-as to which programs, if any, to pursue and how much funding to direct to each -
program on an ongoing basis in response to the scientific and clinical success of each product candidate, as well
as an ongoing assessment as to the product candidate’s commercml potentlal

'\
o . I
General and Administrative .

Our general and administrative expenses primarily consist of salaries and benefits and consultmg and
professional fees related to our administrative, finance, human resources, legal, and information systems support
functions. In addition, general and administrative expenses include insurance, facilities costs and costs associated



with being a public company with securities listed in both the United Stites and Japan. Our general and
administrative expenses for the twelve months ended December 31, 2006 include expected loss on a sub-lease of
approximately $54,000 and impairment charges on capitalized tenant improvements of approximately $35,000,
both of which were a result of the decision, in January 2006, to sub-lease a portion of our corporate headquarters.

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

Our management’s discussion and analysis of our financial condition and results of operations is based on

" our consolidated financial statements, which have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States, The preparation of these consolidated financial statements requires us to
make estimates and judgments that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses and
the related disclosure of contingent liabilities at the date of the consolidated financial statements as well as the
revenues and expenses during the reporting periods. We evaluate our estimates and judgments on an ongoing
basis, including those related to our significant accruals. We base our estimates on historical experience and on
various other assumptions that we believe are reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the
basis for making judgments about the carrying value of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from

" other sourcés. Actual results may differ from these estimates under different assumptions or conditions.

Our significant accounting po]icies are more fully described in Note 1 10 our consolidated financial
statements appearing elsewhere in this report. The following accounting pohcnes are important in fully
understanding and eva!uaung our reported financial results,

Share Based Payments

We grant stock options to purchase our common stock to our employees and directors under our 2004 Stock
Incentive Plan. Additionally, we have outstanding options that were granted under the 2000 General Stock
Incentive Plan from which we no longer make grants, The benefits provided under all of these plans are subject
to the provisions of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards, or SFAS, No. 123R, Share-Based. Payment,
which requires stock-based compensation for an award of equity instruments, including stock options and
employee stock purchase rights, issued to employees to be recognized as a cost in the consolidated financial
statements. The cost of these awards is measured according to the grant date fair value of the stock award and is
recognized over the period during which an employee is required to provide service in exchange for the award,
which is usually the vesting period. In the absence of an observable market price for the stock award, the grant
date fair value of the award would be based upon a valuation methodology that takes into consideration various -
factors, including, the exercise price of the award, the expected term of the award, the current price of the ' S
underlying shares, the expected volatility of the underlying share price, the'expected dividends on the underlying
shares and the risk-free interest rate. On January 1, 2006, we elected to use the modified prospective application
~ in adopting SFAS No. 123R and therefore have not restated results for prior periods. The valuation provisions of ) !
SFAS No. 123R apply to new awards and to unvested awards that are outstanding on the adoption date and any
awards that are subsequently modified or cancelled. Our results of operations for the twelve months ended

"-December 31, 2006 were impacted by the recognition of non-cash expense related to the fair value of our stock- -
based compensation awards. Stock-based compensation expense recognized under SFAS No. 123R for the year
ended December 31, 2006 was $2.1 mllllon

“The valuation provisions of SFAS No. 123R require us to estimate certain variables such as estimated ]
volatility and expected life, which if they change, could have a significant impact on the stock-based . i
compensation amount we recognize.

Prior to 2006, we accounted for employee stock options and warrants using the intrinsic-value method in
accordance with Accounting Principles Board, or APB, Opinion No. 25, Accounting for Stock Issued to
Employees, and related interpretations, and adopted the disclosure-only provisions of SFAS, No. 123, Accounting
for Stock-Based Compensation.




.consolidated financial statements.

‘Comparisan of the Years Endeéi December 31, 2006 and 2005;

under the Argenes master service agreement.

i .
. . ’ W ] -
Stock-based compensation éxpense, which is a non-cash charge, results from stock option and warrant
issuances at exercise prices below the deemed fair value of the underlying common stock. With respect to
options, we recognize this compénsation expense on a straight-line basis over the vesting period of the
underlying option, generally four years. With respect to warrants, because the warrants were variable until
September 2004, we recognized this compensation expense on a straight-line basis at the time of issuance and .
each time there was a change in the estimated fair value of the \\H'arrants ,
We have granted stock options to employees in exchange for services. Given the absence of an active
market for our common stock prior to our initial public offering (“IPO”) in Japan in February 2005, we were
required to estimate the fair valug of our common stock based on a variety of peer companiés and industry-
specific factors for the purpose of measuring the cost of the transaction and properly reflecting it in our

Recent Accounting Pronouncements '
In June 2006, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued Interpretation No, 48, Accoummg for

i
Uncertainty in Income Taxes, an interpretation of FAS109, Acwummg Jor Income Taxes (FIN 48), to create a
single model to address accounting for uncertainty in tax positions. FIN 48 clarifies the accounting for income

taxes, by prescribing a minimum recognition-threshold a tax posmon is required to meet before béing recognized '

in the financial statements. FIN 48 also provides guidance on derecogmtlon measurement, classification, interest
and penalties, accounting in interim periods, disclosure and transition. FIN 48 is effective for fiscal years.
beginning after December 15, 2006. We will adopt FIN 48 as of January 1, 2007, as required. We do not expect
that the adoption of FIN 48 will have a significant impact on our financial position and results of operations.

Results of Operations

Revenues A T . ,
. : ' ) ‘
Qur revenue was $0.3 million for the year ended December 31, 2006 and $0.8 miilion for the year ended;
December 31, 2005. The decrease was due to the completion of the Asahi contract in 2005 and reduced activity,

Reseuarch and Development

Research and development expenses increased to $32.2 mllhon for the year ended December 31, 2006 from
$22.7 million for the year ended December 31, 2005. This i increase primarily was due to: '

* an increase of $8.4 mllllon in clinical trials and ;elated costs;
3 i |
« " an increase of $0.8 million in product licensing costs;
» an increase of $0.2 million in stock-based compcnsatjon expense; and

« an increase of $0.1 million in other costs, primarily consulting.
) 1
We expect that fees paid to external service providers will continue to increase as we continue development
of our existing product candidates. We anticipate that our research and development expenses will continue to .
increase in future periods as we expend additional capital to conduct clinical trials and develop our product
candidates. .




General and Administrative

" General and administrative expenses increased to $9.6 miillion for the year ended December 31, 2006 from
$7 5 million for the year ended December 31, 2005. This increase prlmarlly was due to: "

" e an mcrease of $1.5 million of stock-based compensation expense, 7
« an mcrease of $0.5 million of legal, accoummg and financial adwsory fees; and

¢ an increase of $0.1 related to accrued bonuses.

We anticipate increases in. general and administrative expenses in future periods as we expand our
administrative organization and incur additional costs for insurance, professional and consulting fees associated
with operating as a dual-listed public company and to support the future growth of our research and development
programs..

Interest Income

. Interest income primarily consists of income earned on our cash and investment balances and increased to
$6.0 million for the year ended December 31, 2006 from $4.4 million for the year ended December 31, 2005. The
increase was primarily'due to higher yields on our average cash and investment balances.

Comparison of the Years Ended December 31, 2005 and 2004

Reve,nues . . - .

Our revenue increased to $0.8 million for the year ended December 31, 2005 from $0.5 mitlion for the year
" ended December 31, 2004. The i increase was due to increased activity under the Argenes master services
agreement.

Research and Development

Research and deve]opment expenses increased 1o $22.7 million for the year ended December 31, 2005 from
$11.3 million for the year ended December 31, 2004. This increase primarily was due to: K
e an increase of $13.8 mil]ion in clinical trial and related COSts;
* an mcrease of $0.6 million of consulting costs; -

* adecrease of $3.6 million in other costs, primarily consisting of licensing and mllestone payments and
translation fees;

+ ""an increase of $0.5 million in unallocated expenses as a result of increased salaries and related
personnel costs due to expansion of cur research and development staff; and '

+ an increase of $0.1 million in stock-based compensation expense.
We expect that fees paid to external service providers will continue to increase as we continue development
of our existing product candidates. We anticipate that our research and development expenses will continue to

increase in future periods as we expend additional capital to conduct clinical trials and develop our product
candidates. .

10
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; . |
General and Administrative ' ﬂ . .
! ‘ . -

' !
General and administrative expenses decreased to $7.5 mllllon for the year ended December 31, 2005 from
$37.3 million for the year ended December 31, 2004. This decrease was primarily was due to:

* .anincrease of $1.5 mllllon of salar1es and related costs mcludlng severance payments as we expanded -
_our general and admmlstralwe functions to support our operations and effected changes in our
executive officers; ' ; ‘ ‘ I

¢ an increase of $0 4 rnllhon of ‘various consulting fees ap'ld other consultlng related expenses
¢ an increase of $0.7 mllhon of legal and accounting fees '

* an increase of $0.5 mllllon of insurance premivms;

« anincrease of $1.0 million of other expenses; and l|

+ adecrease of $33.9 million of stock-based eompensatlon expense as a result of the, one trme charge 1n
fiscal year 2004 related to founders warrants. l‘
l 1

We anticipate increases in general and administrative expenses in future periods as we expand our
administrative organization and i incur additional costs for i msurance, professional and consulting fees assocrated
with operating as a public company and to support the future growth of our research and development programs.
Imeres! lncome ! ' I : Ve

Interest income primarily cons1sts of income earned on our eash and investment balances and totaled $4. 4.
million and $0.3 million for the years ended December 31, 2005 and 2004, respectively. The increase from 2004 .
to 2005 primarily was due to the increase in our average cash and investment ba]anees as a result of the proeeeds

from our [PO. l ‘ ! _ o -

Liquidity and Capital Resnurces ' - l

Since our inception, cur operauons have bBeen financed through the private placement of our equlty
securities and through the public sale of our common stock, net of treasury stock repurchases. Through
December 31, 2006 we received Iestlmated net proceeds of $190 4 mlllron from the sale of equity seeurltles as
follows: _5 . l : o

i .
* in September 2000, we.issued and sold 50,000 shares of common stock to founders for aggregate

proceeds of $0.1 mrlllon ' |

* in October 2000 and August 2001, we issued and sold a total of | ,000,000 shares of Senes A preferred
stock for aggregate net proceeds of $10 million;

« from March 2003 lhrough May 2004, we issued and sold 291,150 shares of Series B preferred stock for

aggregate net proceeds of $26.8 million; ;l
|

= on September 2, 2004, we issued and sold 27,677,856 thares of Series C preferred stock for aggregate
" net proceeds of $43.4 m1|l1on

+
i

+ on February 4, 2005, we completed an initial public offering of 3.0 million shares of common stock for
proceeds of $104.5 m:lllon net of underwriting discounts and commissions and offering expenses
{(including issuance costs for registration statements flled on behalf of restncted shareholders thmugh
December 2005); and , : l

« on March 8, 2005, we comp]eted the sale of 157,300 shares of our common stock for aggregate

proceeds of $5.6 million, net of underwnting d1scount% and commissions. The sale of these shares was
the result of the underwriters’ partial exercise of the over-allotment opuon we granted to them in

connection with our lPO :

; i

i o
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. As of December 31, 2006, we had $8.3 million in cash and cash equivalents as compared to $37.7 million as
of December 31, 2005, a decrease of $29.4 million. At December 31, 2006, we had $95.7 million in marketable
securities available-for-sale as compared-to $101.0 million as of December 31, 2005, a decrease of $5.3 million.
Net cash used in operating activities amounted to $34.1 million for the year ended December 31, 2006, primarily
due to the net loss incurred over the year ended December 31, 2006 of $35.7 millicn. Net cash provided by
investing activities for the year ended December 31, 2006 consisted of $6.0 million related to the net maturity of

- investments, offset by $0.2 million of capital equipment purchases. Net cash used in financing activities

amounted to $1.1' million for the year ended December 31, 2006, primarily reflecting the purchase of treasury
stock pursuant to an approved repurchase plan.

We believe that our existing cash, cash equivalents and investments as of December 31, 2006 and the net
proceeds from the sale of 1,000,000 shares of our common stock in a public offering completed February 1, 2007
will be sufficient to. meet our projected operating requirements through at least December 31, 2008.

The fdllowing summarizes our long-term contractual obligations as of December 31, 2006, net of expected
future income from a sub-lease agreement entered into in January 2006 (in thousands):

Contractual Obligations ' Total Current 1-3'Years .Thereal'ter'

Operating leases . .............. e $ 683 § 597 $ 85 $ 1

Quantitatiife and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk

Our exposure to market risk due to changes in interest rates relates primarily to the increase or decrease in

- the amount of interest income we can eam on our investment portfolio. Qur risk associated with fluctuating
.interést rates is limited to our investments in interest rate sensitive financial instruments. Under our current

policies, we do not use interest rate derivative instruments to manage exposure to interest rate changes. We.
attempt to increase the safety and preservation of our invested principal funds by limiting default risk, market
risk and reinvestment risk. We mitigate default risk by investing in investment grade securities. A hypothetical
100 basis point adverse move in interest rates along the entire interest rate yield curve would not materially affect
the fair value of our interest sensitive financial instruments due to their relatively short term nature. Declines in

interest rates over time will, however, reduce our intérest income while increases in interest rates over time will
increase our interest income. :

12




Performance Graph : , v‘ ’

The following graph illustrates a comparison of the total cuamulative stockholder return on our common
stock since January 1, 2006. The graph assumes an initial investment of $100 on January 1, 2006. The
comparisons in the graph are required by the Securities and Exchange Commission and are not intended to
" forecast or be indicative of possible future performance of our common stock.

S I .
Comparison of Cumulative Total Return on Investment
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Controls and Procedures ' . |
" Conclusion Regarding the Effectiveness of Disclosure Contiu'ols and Procedures

Under the supervision and with the participation of cur management, including our Chief Executive Officer
{CEQ) and Chief Financial Officer (CFO), we conducted an evaluation of our disclosure controls and procedures,
as such term is defined under Rule 13a-15(e) promulgated undcuzr the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as ’ '
amended, or the Exchange Act, as of the end of the period covered by this Annual Report. Based on this
evalbation, our CEO and CFO concluded that our disclosure comrols and procedures were effectlve as of the énd
of the perlod covered by this Annual Report.




Managemént’s Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

Our management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial
reporting, as such term is defined in Exchange Act Rule 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f). Under the supervision and with
" the participation of our management, including our CEO and CFOQ, we conducted an evaluation of the
effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2006 based on the framework in
Internal Control—Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway
Commission. Based on our evaluation under the framework in Internal Control—Integrated Framework, our
management concluded that our internal control over financial reporting was effective as of December 31, 2006.

Our management’s assessment of the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting as of
December 31, 2006 has been audited by Emst &Young LLP, an mdependent reglstered public accounting firm,
as stated in their report which is included herein.
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- The Board of Directors and Stockholders

MediciNova, Inc. te

| ;
! ' . '

We have audited management’s assessment, included in-the accompanying Management’s Assessment of
Internal Controls Over Financial Reporting, that MediciNova, Inc. maintained effective internal control over
financial reporting as of December 31, 2006, based on criteria established in Intenal Control-—Integrated
Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Orgamzauons of the Treadway Commission {(the COSO
criteria). MediciNova, Inc.’s management is responsible for mamta.mmg effective internal control over financial
reporting and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on management’s assessment and an opinion on the effectiveness of the
company’s internal control over financial reporting based on our; audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight
Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and 'perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects. Our
audit included obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting, evaluating management’s
assessment, testing and evaluating the design and operating effecnvencqs of internal control, and performing such
other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a
reasonable basis for our opinion. . . : '

A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the prepdratlon of consolidated financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accountmg principles. A company’s internal control
over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that,
in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;
(2} provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of consolidated
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and
directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorized acquisition, vuse, or disposition of the company 5 assets that could have a material effect on the
consolidated financial stalements :

i

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect ‘
misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that
controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

! h

In our opinion, management’s assessment that MediciNova, Inc. maintained effective mtema] control over
financial reporting as of December 31, 2006, is fairly statéd, in all material respects, based on the COSO criteria.
Also, in our opinion, MediciNova, Inc. maintained, in all material respects, effective internal control over
financial reporting as of December 31, 2006, based on the COSO criteria.

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Publlc Company Accountmg Oversight Boarcl
(United States), the consolidated balance sheets of MediciNova, Inc. as of December 31, 2006 and 2005, and the"
related consolidated statements of operations, stockholders’ equnty, and cash flows for each of the three years in
the period ended December 31, 2006 and for the period from Septcmber 26, 2000 (inception) through
December 31, 2006 of MediciNova, Inc. and our report dated February 9, 2007 expressed an unqualified opinion
thereon.

/s Ernst & Young LLP

San Diego, California I |
February 9, 2007 '
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Consolidated Financial Statements and Supplementary Data -
Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The Board of Dlrectors and. Stockholders of
Medxc1Nova Inc

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of MediciNova, Inc. (a development stage
company), as of December 31, 2006 and 2005, and the related consolidated statements of operations,
stockholders’ equity, cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2006 and the
-period from September 26, 2000 (inception) through December 31, 2006, and the statements of stockholders’
equity for the period from September 26, 2000 (inception) to December 31, 2000 and for the years ended -

- December 31, 2001, 2002 and 2003. These financial statements are-the responsibility of the Company 5
management Our respons:billty is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight

Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance )

about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit also includes e)iamining, ona
test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements our audit also includes,
.assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating
the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our
opinien. - ) ‘
In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred 10 above present fairly, in all material respects,
the consolidated financial position of MediciNova, Inc. (a development'stage company), at December 31, 2006
and 2005, the consolidated results of its operations and its cash flows for each of the three years in the period
~ ended December 31, 2006 and the period from September 26, 2000 (inception) through December 31, 2006, and
the consolidated statements of stockholders’ equity for the period from September 26, 2000 (inception) to
December 31,.2000 and the years ended December 31, 2001, 2002 and 2003, in conformity with generally
accepted accounting pnnctples in the Umted States.

As discussed in Note 1 to the consolidated financial statemente, effective January 1, 2006, MediciNova, Inc.
changed its method.of accounting for share-based payments in accordance with Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards No. 123R, Share-Based Payment.

We have also audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company. Accounting Oversight Board
(United States), the effectiveness of MediciNova, Inc.’s internal control over financial reporting as of
December 31, 2006, based on criteria established in Internal Control- lntegrated Framework issued by the
Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission and our report dated February 9, 2007
expressed an unqualified opinion thereon.

Emst & Young LLP

San Diego, California
February 9, 2007
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Assets
Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents
Marketable securities available-for-sale
Prepaid expenses and other current assets

MEDICINOVA, INC.
(a development s'lage company)

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

Total current assets .......... e e ..

Property and equipment, net

(14 1= g 1] =1 (O

Total assets ........ R P PP

Current liabilities?

" Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity

Accounts payable ......... e e e P
Accrued expenses . ...... ... L. Lo T

Accrued compensanon and rel.lled expenscs

Total current liabilities ............... ... ..ot e
Deferredrent ...... ... i, e

Total liabilities .. ........... e

Commitments
Stockholders’ equity:

Common stock, $0.00]1 par value; 20,000,000 shares aulhonzed at

December 31, 2006 and 2005; 10,421,985 and 9,885,585 shares lssued

at December 31, 2006 and 2005, respectively
Additional paid-incapital .. .. ... ... o oo oo
Deferred employee stock- based compensation
Accumulated other comprehenswe loss .......... e
Treasury stock ............ L,
Deficit accumulated during the development stage ........

Total stockholders’ equity . .. .. S ST

o
L]

¥

Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity .................. P

See accompanying notes.

L]

$

.

December 31,

2006

2005

37,677,985

$ 8334496 $
95,716,690 101,022,899
6,618,994 2,558,529
110,670,180 - 141,259,413
870,645 - 1,134,297
50,000 ,
111,590,825 § 142,393,710
$ 3828270 °'$ 1,379,982
6,332,269 4,341,427
408,004 905,016
10,568,543 6,626,425
41,374 59,506
10,609,917 6,685,931
10,422 9,885
258,611,697 257,032,491
— (799,439)
(49,205) (15,188)
(1,437.870) " (55,445)
(156,154,136)  (120,464,525)
100,980,908 135,707,779
142,393,710

. §

111,590,825 §




' MEDICINOVA, INC.
{(a development stage company)

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

Revenues .......... e .
Operating expenses:
Costof revemies ............... .
Research and development .............
General and admlmstratwe .............

Tota.l operating expenses .............. e

Operating 10sS ... ..ot

Other income, net” ........ e e

Netloss . ... ..

Accretion to redemption value of redeemable -

convertible preferred stock .............
Deemed dividend resulting from beneficial .
* conversion feature on Series C redeemable
convertible preferred stock .............

Net loss applicable to common

stockholders . ............... ... ... :

Basic and diluted net loss per common
share(l) ........ . e

Shares used to compute basic and diluted net
losspershare ............. s

Peﬁod from

_ ‘ Septe_mber _26,
Years ended December 31, ' Em&ﬁ:ﬁg%‘;)’
2006 2005 2004 2006 -
Y 263_,877 $ 804068 § 490282 $ 1,558,227
146,607 l 674,232 437,582 1,258,421
32,170,847 22,738,241 . ]‘1,3]7,05_5 71,723,952
9,623,956 7,479,244 37,348,031 58,514,139,
41,941,410 30,891,717 49,102,668 137,496,512
(41 ,677,533) (30,087 649) (48,612,386) (135,938,285)
5,987,922 4 395,514 339,783 1,147,271
(35,689,611) (25,692,135) (48,272,603) . (124,791,014
— (19,689) (78,756) (98,4455
— — (1265677 (31,264,677)
%(35,689,611) $(25,711,824) $%(79,616,036) $(156,1 54,136)_

$ (3.52) § (2.88) § (1,592.32)

10,130,920

8,928,533 50,000

(1) As aresult of the conversion of our preferred Stock into 6,678,285 shares of our common stock upon.
completion of our IPO in February 2005, there is a lack of comparablhty in the basic and diluted net loss per
share amounts for 2004. Please refer to Note 1 for the-pro forma basic and diluted net loss per share

" calculations for the periods presented.

See accompanying notes.
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MEDICINOVA, !NC
(a development stage company)

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Operating activities:
Netloss ................. e
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash used in
aperating activities:
Non-cash stock-based compensation . ..............
Depreciation and amortization . .. .................
Amortization of premium/discount on marketable ’
SECUMTIES ..ttt iiin it e
Impairment of sublease ................ e
-Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Prepaid expenses and otherassets ...............
Accounts payable, accrued expensés and deferred -
1 L
Accrued compensation and related expenses ... ...

Net cash used in operating activities .................

Investing activities:

Purchases of marketable securities

available-for-sale ........................... L
Maturities of marketable securities

available-for-sale ............. .
Acquisition of property and equipment ,............
Proceeds from sales of property and equipment . ... ..

Net cash provided by / (used in} investing activities . . ...

Financing activities:
Net proceeds from the sale of common stock ........
Sale of preferred stock, net of issuance costs ........
Purchase of treasury stock ........... ... 000
Advances received for the sale of convenible preferred
SOk L e

Net cash {used in) / provided by financing activities . ...

Net (decrease) / increase in cash and cash equivalents . ..
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of period ........

Cash and cash equivalents, end of period .............

Supplemental disclosure of non-cash 1nveetmg and
financing activities;
Conversion of convertible preferred stock into
common stock upon initial public offering ........

Decrease.in accrued IPO issuance costs ............

Unrealized loss on marketable securities

available-for-sale . ... ... .. ... ..............

Period from

September 26,
' 2000 (inception)
Years ended December 31, to December 31,
2006 2005 2004 2006

$ (35,689,611) § (25,692,135) $(48.272.603) $(124,791,014)
2,090,182 439,157 34,294,495 36,823,834
437,392 152,454 45,298 755,065
(745,766) (868,372) — (1,614,138)
35259 . — — 35,259 .
(4,110465)  (2,070,953)  (379.216) (6,668,994)
4,420,998 4816504 340,493 10,201,913
(497,012) 342,360 425,057 408,004
(34.059,023)  (22,880,895) (13,546,476)  (84.850,071)
(108.173.406) (213,319,715) (10,750,000)  (333.493,121)
114,191364 125,150,000 - — 239,341,364
(208.999) (978,564)  (321,235) (1,855,790)

_ — — 194,821
5,808,050  (89,148279) (11,071,235}  (95,812,726)
289,000 110,961,276  (1,082,084) 110,218,192

- — 60,560,424 80,216,971
(1,382,425) (55,445) - — (1.437.870)
— — (300,000) —
(1,093.425) 110,905,831 59,178,340 188,997,293
(29.343,489)  (1,123,343) 34,560,629 2,334,496
37,677,985 38,801,328 4,240,699 —

$ 8334496 § 37,677.985 $3880),328 § 8334496
$ — § 43515677 § — $ 43515677
$ — § (1,089420) $ 1089420 § —
$ 34017 § 15188 $ — $ 49205

See accompanying notes.
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MEDICINOVA, INC. ' ' :
(a development stage company)

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
1. The Company, Basis of Presentation and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
The Company

We were incorporated in the state of Delaware in September 2000. We are a biopharmaceutical company
focused on acquiring and developing novel, small molecute therapeutics. Through strategic alliances primarily
with Japanese pharmaceutical companies, we are developing a diversified portfolio of product candidates, each
of which we believe has patent pro:ecuon a weli-characterized and differentiated lherapeutnc profile and
attractive comznercial potential.

To date, we have acquired license rights relating to eight compounds for the development of ten product
~ candidates, in what we believe are large and underserved markets. Our pipeline includes eight programs in active
clinical testing for the treatment of asthma, status asthmaticus, multiple sclerosis, interstitial cystitis, solid tumor
cancer, Generalized Anxiety Disorder, preterm labor and urinary'incontinence. Our earlier stage programs consist
of a treatment for urinary incontix:lence which recently entered clinical testing, and two product candidates,
which relate to thrombotic disorders, which are in preclinical development Qur strategy is 1o advance our
clinical programs through the Phase II proof-of- concept stage or Ibeyond and, at appropriate points of high-value
inflection, to establish strategic a]lmnces and partnerships to support Phase 111 clinical testing and
commercialization of selected development programs. We may also retain full development and -
commercialization rights for cenam of our compounds. l o
Basis of Presentation ' E '

. ‘1

Our primary activities since incorporation have been organizational activities, including recruiting

personnel, establishing office facilities, conducting research and development, performing business and financial
planning and raising capital. Accordmgly, we are considered to be in the development stage.

We have sustained operating losses since inception and expect such losses to continue over the next several
years. Management plans to continue financing the operations with a combination of equity issvances and debt
arrangements. If adequate funds are not available, we may be required to delay, reduce the scope of, or eliminate’
one or more of our research or development programs, or cease operations. During the first quarter of 2003, we
completed an initial public offering (“IPQ") of 3.0 million shares of common stock for proceeds of $104.5
million, net of estimated underwriting discounts and commissions and offering expenses, and, as a result of the
. underwriters’ partial exercise of the over-allotment option we granted to them in connection with our IPO, we
sold 157,300 shares of common stock for aggregate proceeds of $5.6 million, net of underwriting discounts and
commissions. In December 2006, we listed on the Nasdaq Global Market. Accordingly, we are a public company
in both the United States and Japan as our stock is traded on both' the Nasdaq Global Market and the Hercules
market of the Osaka Securities Exchange.

Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of MediciNova, Inc. and its wholly-owned

LI

subsidiary. MediciNova, Inc. and its subsidiary are collectively referred to herein as *we,” “our” or “us.”

On December i3, 2006, MediciNova (Europe) Limited, was incorporated under the laws of England and
Wales, and established for the purpose of facilitating the clinical development of the Company’ s compounds for
the European marketplace. MedmNova {Europe) Limited was capnahzed with $5,000. MedlCINO\Fa Inc. is its

; :

. | 23



MEDICINOVA, INC.
(a development stage company)

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

sole shareowner, holding 5,000 shares, and its functional currency is the U.S. dollar, the reporting cﬁn'ency of its

parent.

All intercompany transactions and the investment in subsidiary account have been eliminated in
consolidation. ' ‘

Use of Estimates

. The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting
principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and
liabilities"and the disclosure of contingent liabilities at the date of the consolidated financial statements as well as

- the reported revenues and expenses during the reporting periods, On an ongoing basis, management evaluates .

their estimates and judgments. Management bases estimates on historical experience and on various other factors
that they believe are reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis for making
judgments about the carrying value of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources.
Actual results may differ from these estimates under different assumptions or conditions.

Stock Split

Effective October 31, 2006 and pursuant to the reverse stock split approved by our stockholders and our-

Board of Directors, each ten shares of issued and cutstanding common stock were combined into and became one '

share of common stock and no fractional shares were issued. The accompanying consolidated financial
statements and related disclosures give retroactive effect to the reverse stock split for all periods presented.

,

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consists of cash, and other highly liquid investments with original maturities of
three months or less from the date of purchase. . ;

Marketable Securities Available-for-sale -

Invesiments with an original maturity of more than three months are considered short-term investments and
have been classified by management as marketable securities available-for-sale. Such investments are carried at
fair value, with unrealized gains and losses, if any, included as a separate component of stockholders’ equity. The

" cost of marketable securities available-for-sale is based on the specific identification method.

Concentration of Credit Risk

Financial instruments that potentially subject us to a significant concentration of credit risk consist primarily
of cash, cash equivalents and marketable securities available-for-sale. We maintain deposits in federally insured
financial institutions in excess of federally insured limits. However, management believes we are not exposed to
significant credit risk due to the financial position of the depository institutions in which those deposits are held.
Additionally, we have established guidelines regarding diversification of our investments and their maturities,

" which are designed to maintain safety and liquidity.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

Our financial instruments including cash and cash equivalents, accounts payable, and accrued liabilities, are
carried at cost, which we believe approximates fair value given their short-term nature.
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v MEDICINOVA,INC. . o
{a development stage company)

.Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
Other Assets

Other assets consist of costs incurred through December 31, 2006 associated with our public offering of
1,000,000 shares of common stock pursuant to the Shelf Registration and Prospectus Supplement filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission on November 14, 2006 and January 30, 2007, respectlve]y Upon
completion of the public offermg, these costs will be accounted for as a reduction to the gross proceeds of the
offering in the consolidated stater_nent of stockholders” equity, (See Note 9, “Subsequent Events.™)

o . I .
Property and Equipment : ?i
' ! ' .

Property and equipment, net, which consists of leasehold improvements, equipment, and construction in
progress, is stated at cost. Leasehold improvements, furniture and equipment, and software are depreciated using
the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the related assets. The useful life for fumiture,
equipment (other than computers) and software is five years, computers is three years and ledsehdld
improvements are amortized over the lesser of the useful life or the term of the lease. Our cuirent office leases
for Tokyo and San Diego expire in 2007 and 2008, respectively. .

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets

We review long-lived assets, including property and equipment, for impairment whenever events or changes

iin business circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of the assets may not be fully recoverable. An

impairment loss would be recognized when estimated undiscounted future cash flows expected to result from the
use of the asset and its eventual disposition are less than its carrying amount. The impairment loss, if recognized,
would be based on the excess of the carrying value of the impairéd asset over its respective falr value.

Impairment, if any, is assessed usmg dlscoumed cash ﬂows

Revenue Recogniu'on .

In connection with the management of clinical trials, we pa)‘!;, on behalf of our customers, fees to
investigators and other pass-through costs for which we are relmbursed at cost, without mark-up or profit. In
addition, we charge management fees based on negotiated hourly rates pursuant to master services agreements
with Asahi Kasei Pharma Corporation and Argenes, Inc. We recognize management fees based on actual hours-
worked and recognize pass-through expenses as revenue when the related liability is incurred in accordance with
Emerging Issues Task Force (“"EITF”) Rule No. 01-14, Income Statement Characterization of Reimbursements
Received for " Owut-of-Pocket” Expenses Incurred. EITF No. 01-14 requires reimbursable pass-through expenses
incurred to be characterized as revenue in the statement of operations. Pass-through costs represent the majority .
of cost of revenues for all perieds in which we have recorded revenue.

Asahi Kasei Master Services Agreement

Pursuant to the master services agreement with Asahi Kasei Pharma Corporation (**Asahi”), we provided
Asahi with consulting and contract management services in connection with the development of pharmaceutical

products. Under the agreement, we worked on one compound. For the year ended December 31, 2004 we

recognized $455,195 of revenue under this contract. For the years ended December 31, 2005 and 2006 no_
revenues were recognized in either year under the Asahi contract as the contracted services were completed
during fiscal year 2005. Thus, we do not expect to generate further revenue from this agreement. Revenue
recognized related to work performed in the U.S. 4
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. MEDICINOVA, INC.
(a development stage company)

Netes to Consolidated Financial Statements "
Argenes Master Services Agreement

Pursuant to the master services agreement with Argenes Inc. (“Argenes "), we provide Argenes with
consulting and contract management services in connection with the development of pharmaceutical progducts,
Under the agreement, we are working on one compound. The master services agreement may be terminated by
either party following an uncured default of its material obligations under the agreement. Either party may
terminate the agreement upon three months’ written notice. In addmon Argenes may terminate any project-
specific addendum to the agreement immediately at any time upon written notice. The term of this-agreement is
indefinite and depends on the completion of services-as provided for in the agreement. For the years ended
December 31,2004, 2005 and 2006, we recognized $35,087, $804,068 and $263,877, respectively, of revenue
under this agreement, It is not expected that we will generate any revenue from this contract in the near-term

‘future. Revenue recognized related to work performed in the U.S.

]

Research and Development

Research and development expenses consist of costs incurred to further our research and development
activities and.includes salaries and related employee benefits, costs associated with clinical trials, non-clinical
activities such as toxicology testing, regulatory activities, research-related overhead expenses, and fees paid to
externdl service providers and contract research organizations who conduct certain research and development-.
‘activities on our behalf. Research and development expenses also include fees for licensed technology for which
. technological feasibility has not been established and there are no alternative uses. Research and development
Ccosts are expensed as incurred.

Income Taxes .
:

In accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards ("SFAS”}-No. 109, Accounting for Income
Tuxes, a deferred tax asset or liability is determined based on the difference between the financial statement and
the tax basis of assets and liabilities as measured by the enacted tax rates, which will be in effect when these
differences reverse. We provide a valuation allowance against net deferred tax assets unless, based upon the
available evidence, it is more likely than not that the deferred tax assets will be realized.

Stock-Based I(.’ompensation

-

. We grant stock options 1o our employees directors, and consultants under the 2004 Stock Incentive Plan
(the “2004 Plan”), the successor to the 2000 General Stock Incentive Plan (the *2000 Plan™). Stock options
_1ssued to non-employees were recorded at their fair value-as determined in accordance with Emerging Issues
‘Task Force, ("EITF”), Issue No. 96-18, Accounting for Eqmty Instruments that dre Issued to Other than

Employees for Acquiring, or in Conjunction with Selling, Goods or Services. Effective January 1, 2006, we
adopted Statement of Financial Accounting Standards 123R, Share-Based Payment (“SFAS No. 123R”) using
the Modified Prospective Application as our transition method and, thus, the benefits provided under these Plans
constitute share-based compensation subject to the provisions of SFAS No. 123R. Prior to January 1, 2006, we
accounted for share-based compensation related to stock options under the recognition and measurement .
principles of Accounting Principles Board (“APB”} Opinion No. 25; therefore, we measured compensation
expense for our stock options using the intrinsic value method, that is, as the excess, if any, of the fair market
value of our stock at the grant date over the amount required to be paid to acquire the stock, and provided the pro
forma disclosures required by SFAS No. 123. .
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I MEDICINOVA, INC. . . v
{(a development stage cﬁmpany)

Notes to Consohdated Fmancnal Statements

" Asa resull of the adoptlon of SFAS No. 123R, our net loss for the year ended December 31, 2006 was
higher by approximately $1.9 million, than if we had continued to account for share-based compensation under
APB Opinion No. 25. Basic and diluted net loss per share for the\yea.r ended December 31, 2006 would have
been $3.31 per share if we had not adopted SFAS No. 123R. SFAS No. 123R requires that cash flows resulting
from tax deductions in excess of the cumulative compensation cc:isl recognized for options exercised (excess tax
benefits) be classified as cash inflows from financing activities and cash outflows from operating activities. Due
to our net loss position, no tax benefits have been recognized in the consolidated financial statements.

The exercise price of options granted during the year ended:December 31, 2006 were either equal to market
value or at a price above market value on the date of grant. 1,702,891 options were granted during the year ended
December 31, 2006 and share-based compensation expense for such options is reflected in operating results
during 2006. The estimated fair value of each option award was determined on the date of grant using the Black-
~ Scholes option valuation model with the following weighted- averagc assumpt:ons for option grants:

i : Year ended

, ! December 31, 2006
Risk free interest rate ........... e e 4.56%
Expected volatility of common siock . ...........iiveiiiian., 7 69.00%
Dividendyield . .. ... ... ... .. 0.00%
Expected option term (inyears) ......... ..o i, 6 00

The risk-free interest rate assumption is based upon observed interest rates appropriate for the expccted term
of our empioyee stock options. We used a welghted average of the historical stock price volatility of our stock
and the historical stock price volatility of certain peers 1o calculate the expected volatility assumption required
for the Biack-Scholes model consistent with SFAS 123R. Prior to fiscal 2006, we had used our peer group’s
historical stock price volatility as the basis of our stock price volatility in accordance with SFAS No. 123 for
purposes of our pro forma information. We have not paid any dividends on common stock since our inception
and do not anticipate paying dividends on our common stock in the foreseeable future. The expected life of
employee stock options represents the average of the life of the options and the average vesting period, and is a
derived output of the simplified method, as allowed under the Securities and Exchange Commission’s Staff
Accounting Bulletin No. 107, Share-Based Payment.

As share-based compensation expense recognized in the accompanying consolidated statement of operations
for the year ended December 31, 2006 were based on awards ultimately expected to vest, it should be reduced for
estimated forfeitures. SFAS No. 123R requires forfeitures to be estimated at the time of grant and revised, if
" necessary, in subsequent periods if actual forfeitures differ from those estimates. We have very few employees
and our historical turnover has been minimal. Therefore, we have not estimated forfeitures and instead adjust our
-stock-based compensation expense as forfeitures occur. We believe that the impact on stock based compensation
between estimating forfeitures and recording the impact as the forfeitures occur would not be material. In our pro
forma information required under SFAS No. 123 for the periods prior to fiscal 2006, we accounted for forfeitures
as they occurred. Our determination of fair value is affected by our stock price as well as a number of
assumptions that require judgment. The weighted-average fair value of each option granted during the year ended
December 31, 2006, estimated as.of the grant date using the Black-Scholes option valuation model, was $6.62.
per option.

For the year ended December 31, 2006, share-based compensation expense related to stock options was
$2.1 million and was recorded as a component of general and administrative expense ($1.6 million) and research
and development expense.($0.5 million}. There were two stock option exercises during the year ended
December 31, 2006, in which approximately $14,000 were received.
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MEDICINOVA, INC.
{a development stage company)

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements r

" For stock options granted prior to the adoption of SFAS No. 123, the following table illustrates the pro
- forma effect on net Joss and net loss per common share as if we had applied the fair value recogmuon provnsnons

" of SFAS No. ]23R in determining stock based compensation for awards under the plan:

Years ended December 31,

. ‘ . _ 2005 2004
Net loss applicable to common slockholders.,‘as'reported ................ ... $(25,711,824) $(79,616,036)
Add: total stock-based employee compensation expense included in nét loss ... : 439,157 34,294,495
Less: stock-based employee compensation expense determmed under the fair -

ValuE MEtO . o\ oot et e S (1,090,107) (17,946,851}
SFAS No. 123 pro forma net loss applicable to common slockholders e $(26,362,774) $(63,268,392)
Basic and diluted net loss per share, as repbn'ed ................. ceeeeenl B ('2.88I) $ (1,592.32)
Basic and diluted net loss per share, pro forma under SFAS No. 123 ........... $ (295 $ (1,265.37)

. 3
The fair value of the options granted prior to the completion of our IPO was estimated at the date of grant
using the minimum value pricing model. The estimated fair value of the options was amortized on a straight-line
basis over the vesting pertod. Fair value was determined using the following weighted-average assumptions:

Years ended .
December 31,
2005 2004
Dividend yield ... . . e e, — —
Risk-free INETeSt TALE . . oo oottt et e e e e e e 4.4% . 3.9%
Volatility ................ T 75.0% —
Expected life {inyears) ~ .. ... ... .. .. ... i e 5 5

As of December 31, 2006, there was $10.1 million of unamortized compensation cost related to unvested
slock option awards, which is expected to be recognized over a remaining weighted-average vesting period of 3.3
years. Of such amount, $0.3 million represents unamortized compensation cost related 1o unvested stock option
awards measured using the intrinsic value method. Prior to the adoption of SFAS No. 123R, we presented such
unamortized compensation cost as deferred compensation and it was classified as a separate component of
stockholders’ equity. In accordance with the provisions of SFAS No, 123R, on January 1, 2006, we reclassified

- deferred compensation against additional paid-in capital.

Comprehensive Income

We have adopted SFAS No. 130; Reporting Comprehensive Income, which requires that all components of
comprehensive income, including net income, be reported in the financial statements in the period in which they
are recognized. Comprehensive income is defined as the change in equity during a period from transactions and
other events and circumstances from non-owner sources. Net income and other comprehensive income, including
foreign currency translation adjustments and unrealized gains and losses on investments, shall be reported; net of
their related tax effect, to arrive at comprehensive income.
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MEDICINOVA, INC." . o
{a development stage cémpany)

Notes 1o Consolidated Financial Statements

" Net Loss Per Share

Basic net loss per share attributable to common stockholders is calculated by dividing theé net loss by the
weighted average number of common shares outstanding for the period, without consideration for commen stock

" equivalents. Diluted net loss per share is computed by dividing the net loss attributable to common stockholders

by the weighted average number 6f common share equivalents outstanding for the period determined using the
treasury-stock method. For purposes of this calculation convertible preferred stocks are considered to be common
stock equivalents and are only included in the calculation of diluted net loss per share when their effect is
dilutive. - ' »
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MEDICINOVA, INC.
(a development stage company)

. Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

The unaudited pro forma basic and diluted net loss per share is calculated by dividing the pro forma net loss
by the weighted average number of common shares outstanding for the period plus the weighted average number
of common shares resulting from the assumed conversion of the outstanding shares of convertible preferred
stock. The assumed conversion is calculated using the as-if-converted method, as if such conversion had occurred

. as of the beginning of each period presented or the original issuance, if later. The pro forma net loss is calculated .

by subtracting the accretion to redemption value of redeemable conventible preferred stock from the net loss

* applicable to commmon stockholders.

Years ended December 31,

. 2006 2005 2004
" Historical ‘ :
Numeratbr: ,
T Lo R $(35,689,611) $(25,692,135) $(48,272,603}
Accretion to redemption value of redeemable convertible
preferred SLOCK .. . oo e e . — T (19,689 '(78,756)
Deemed dividend resulting from beneficial conversion feature on o i
Series C redeemable convertible preferred stock ............ — — (31,264,677)
Net loss applicable to common stockholders .. . .. e $(35,689.611) $(25,711,824) $(79.616,036)
Dencominator; ] . .
Weighted average common sharg:s outstanding ............... ' 10,130,920 8,928,533 o 50,000
Basic and diluted net losspershare ......................... $ 3% - (2.88) § (1,592.32) .
Pro Forma
Pro forma net loss ....... P e ‘ . $(79,537,2805
N Pro forma basic and diluted net oss per share .......... S - _— $ (18.52)
. Shares used above ........ e e e 50,000
Pro forma adjustments to reflect assumed weighted average effect
of conversion of prefemmed stock ............ .. ... L y 4,244 328
Pro forma shares used to compute basic and diluted net loss per L :
share ............. e weee 4,294,328
Historical outstanding anti-dilutive securities not included in
diluted net loss per share calculation
Preferred stock (as converted) . .. .. .. e R — : — . 6,678,285
Common stock warmants .. ................. e e 777,076 1,335,657 1,335,657

Common stock options .......... ... ... ... . 2,038,791 472,417 155,000
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Recent Accounting Pronouncements
In June 2006, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued Interpretation No. 48, Accounting for -

Uncertainty in Income Taxes, an interpretation of FAS109, Accounting for Income Taxes (FIN 48), to create a
single model to address accounting for uncertainty in tax positions. FIN 48 clarifies the accounting for income
taxes, by prescribing a minimum recognition threshold a tax position is required to meet before being recognized
in the financial statements. FIN 48 also provides guidance on derecognition, measurement, classification, interest
and penalties, accounting in interim periods, disclosure and transition. FIN 48 is effective for fiscal years
beginning after December 15, 2006. We will adopt FIN 48 as of January 1, 2007, as required. We do not expect

that the adoption of FIN 48 will have a significant impact on our financial position and results of operations.

2. Balance Sheet Details . "
. N I - L

Marketable securities available-for-sale consist of the following: .

Investment securities available-for-sale consist of certificates of deposit, high-grade auction rate securities
(*ARS"), corporate debt securities and government sponsored securities. All of the corporate debt securities and
government sponsored securities have contractual maturities of 12 months or less as of December 31, 2006. The
ARS have either a stated or perpetual maturity that is structured w1th short-term holding periods. At the end of
each holding period, a new auction is held to determine the rate or dividend for the next holding period. We can
sell or continue to hold securities at par at each auction. In order for us to sell ARS, the auction needs to be
successful whereby demand in the marketplace exceeds the supply. The length of each holding period is
determined at the original issuance of the ARS. Typically, ARS holding periods range from 7 to 63 days. As of
December 31, 2005, our ARS consist of $27,000,000 of perpetual securities and $42,750,000 with stated maturity
dates ranging from.2022 to 2044 and reset dates primarily less than 5-months. As of December 31, 2006, our
ARS consist of $8,300,000 of perpetual securities and $75,123, 000 with stated maturity datés ranging from 2021
to 2044 and reset dates of up to 63 days.

December 31, 2006 December 31, 2005
Amortized Gross Unrealized . Amortized Gross Unrealized
Cost-  Gains Losses  Fair YValue Cost Gains Losses Fair Value
Certificates of K ‘ | : : .
deposit.......... $ — $ - $ — % = % 503000 $— $ (238D % 500,619
Auction rate , : ' '
securities . ....... 83,425,000 — — 83,425,000 69,750,000 — — 69,750,000
Corporate debt
securities .. ...... 2,948,618 1,372 — 2,949,990 19,897,780 390 (7.999) 19,890,180
Government L .
sponsored : j ' b Co i
securities . ....... 9,392,277 = (50,577 9,341,700 10,887,208 538 (5,736) 10,882,100

$95,765,895 $1,372  $(50,577) $95,716,690 $101,038,087 $928  $(16,116) $101,022,899

As of December 31, 2006, the unreatized losses on government sponsored securities were primarily caused by

Tecent increases in interest rates. Based on an evaluation of the credit standing of each issuer, management believes

it is probable that we will be able to collect all amounts due accordmg to the contractual terms. We had no realized -
Josses on sales of investment securities available-for-sale for the years ended December 31, 2006 and 2005,
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Property and equipment, net, consist of the following:

December 31,
, 2006 2005

Leasehold IMProvements . ... ....v.vre oo ren et it iranneaenns $ 535309 $ 147528
Fumniture and equipment .............uvuuiaiiininaieaians e 707,645 694,870
Software .......... [ e 276,161 197,491
Construction INProgress .. .....ovvinnrinnen e nen.ns S : — 306,525

. . ) 1,519,115 - 1,346,414
Less accumulated depreciation ................ ... ... .... DU (648,470 (212,117

$ 870,645 51,134,297

Accrued expenses consist of the following:

December 31,
2006 2005
Research and developmentcosts ........... .. ... .. ... ... L $5,402,319 $4,006,050
Professional services fees (legal, accounting, consulting, elc.) ........... 505,014 164,987 -
Accrued payable related to master service agreement ......... e 222,131 —
Other ........... ... it R 202,805 170,390

'$6,332,269  $4,341,427

3. Related Party Transactions

Our Board of Directors approved an arrangement in September 2001 to engage Dr. Yuichi Iwaki, Chairman
of the Board, as a consultant in connection with financing transactions and business development activities. In
November 2003, we amended the arrangement and in November 2004, we further amended the a.rrangerhent
pursuant to a consulting agreement. Pursuant to such arrangement, Dr. Iwaki was paid $20,000 per month plus
other cash or stock compensation, if any, as the Board of Directors deems appropriate for his services rendered.
In January 2006, we increased Dr, Iwaki’s consulting fee to $29,167 based on the findings of an independent
study covering executive compensation, Compensation eamned by Dr. Iwaki during the years ended December 31,
2006, 2005 and 2004 were $500,000, $320,000 and $360,000 respectively.

On July 19, 2005, the Board appointed Dr. Iwaki as our Executive Chairman and on September 30, 2005,
the Board named him as our Acting Chief Executive Officer and Acting Chief Financial Officer. On March 15,
2006, Dr. Iwaki was appeinted to the office of President and Chief Executive Officer. On November 8, 2006,
Dr, Iwaki’s services as Acting Chief Financial Officer were no longer required as the Board appointed Shintaro
Asako (previously our Vice President, Accounting and Administration) to the office of Vice President and Chief
Financial Officer. Effective January 1, 2007, Dr. Iwaki became our full-time employee. :
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" 4. Commitments and Contingencies

Facility Lease

In 2004, we leased our corporate headquarters under a non-cancelable operating lease that expires in .
February 2008. In March 2005, we amended our non-cancelable operating lease for our corporate headquarters to
expand our leased space from 11,375 square feet to 16,609 square feet. We have the option to renew the lease for
three years. In June 2005, we leased office space in Japan under a non-cancelable operating lease that expires in
May 2007. Rent expense. net of sub-lease income in 2006, for the years ended December 31; 2006, 2005, 2004
and the period from September 26, 2000 (inception) to December 31, 2006 was $624,430, $648,915, $310,596
and $1,782,744, respectively. ' 3

In January 2006, we sub-leased 3,506 square feet of our corporate headquarters under a ron-cancelable
operating lease that expires in January 2008. Sub-lease income for 2006 is $101,762 and expected sub-lease
income for 2007 and 2008 are $113,594 and $9.466, respectively. During the first quarter of 2006 we recorded a
charge of approximately $54,000 related to our expected loss on the sub-lease and a charge of approximately
$35,000 related to tenant improvement impairment in the sub-leased space. No further impairment charge has
been recorded in 2006, Both charges are included in general and administrative expense on the accompanying
consolidated statement of operations. . :

‘

Future minimum payments (net of sub-lease income) and inclusive of other operating leases are as follows:
: ; | : o

Years ending December 31: - !
1

2007 ....... e U $597,467

2008 ...l b L. 59645 _

Thereafter ... ..coooneeeneenn. . ; .......... 25,698 i
. | —_—

$682,810 i

License Agreements. SR B

We are a blopharmaceuncal company focused on acqutrmghand developing novel, small molecule

therapeutics and have entered intd numerous license agreementsno acquire the rights to develop and

commercialize a variety of product candidates, Pursuant to these)agreements, we have obtained exclusive, except

" with respect to various Asian countries, sublicenseable licenses to the patent rights and know-how for all

indications under the agreements. We generally make an upfront payment and are required to make additional .

~.payments upon the achievement of specific development and regulatory approval milestones. We are also

obligated to pay royalties under the agreements until the later of the expiration of the applicable patent or the
applicable last date of market exclusivity after the first commercial sale, on a country-by-country basis.

-The amount expended under these agreements and charged 1o research and development expense during the
years ended December 31, 2006, 2005, 2004 and the period from September 26, 2000 (inception) to December

31, 2006 were approxlmately $1,050,000, $500,000, $3,500,000 and $6,750,000, respectively. As of

December 31, 2006, future potential milestone payments totaled approximately $97.2 million and there dre no
minimum royalties required under any of the license agreements. From June 19, 2002, the date of our first license
agreement, through December 31, 2006, we have'entered into nine license agreements with Japanese and British
pharmaceutical companies and a non-profit research institute.
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Legal Proceedings

In November 2006, we reached a mediation settlement of the dispute concerning the termination of
employment of a former executive in the Tokyo District Court. Under the settlement, which is the subject of a
written mediation decree prepared by the Tokyo District Court, we have agreed to pay the former executive eight
months of severance pay, approximately $160,000, which has been included as a charge in our consolldated
statement of operations in 2006. :

5. Redeemable Convertible Preferred Stock and Stockholders’ Equity
" Initial Public Offering in Japan

On February 4, 2005, we completed an initial public offering of 3,000,000 shares of common stock for
proceeds to us of $104,486,895, net of underwriting discounts and commissions and offering expenses. In
addition, on March 8, 2005, we closed the sale of an additional 157,300 shares of our common stock pursuant to
the partial exercise, by our underwriters, of an over-allotment option which resulted in aggregate proceeds to us
of $5,557,773, net of underwriting discounts and commissions. In connection with our 1PO, redeemable
convenible and convertible preferred stock outstandmg as of February 4, 2005 was automatically convcncd into
6,678,285 shares of common stock.

Redeemable Convemble Preferred Stock

On September 2, 2004, we sold 27,667,856 shares of Series C redeemable convertible preferred stock at a

purchase price of $1.62 per share for total net proceeds of $43,404,320, net of $1,417,607 of estimated issuance

COSts.

The Series C preferred stock was sold at a price per share below our IPO price. Accordingly, pursuant to
EITF Issue No. 98-5, Accounting for Convertible Securities with Bengficial Conversion Features, we recorded a

deemed dividend on the Series C preferred stock of $31,264,677, which is equal 1o the number of shares of Series
C preferred stock sold multiplied by the difference between the estimated fair value of the underlying common -

stock and the Series C preferred stock conversion price per share. The deemed dividend increased the net loss

" applicable to common stockholders in the calculation of basic and diluted net loss per common share and was
reported as a charge to accumulated deficit and a credit to addluonal paid-in capital, with no net impact on total

* stockholders” equity.

Founders’ Common Stock and Warrants

At inception, we issued a total of 50,000 shares of our common stock to two of our founders who then
became officers and directors, for proceeds of $50,000. We also granted the two officers and directors warrants
to purchase 50,000 shares of our common stock at an exercise price of $1.00 per share. The warrants contained
an antidilution clavse providing the founders with the right to purchase additional shares of common stock any
time there was a dilution event so that they could maintain their original ownership percentage. The warrants
were considered variable and, unless the number of underlying shares of common stock become fixed or
- exercised, will require compensation to be recorded when the fair value of the underlying shares of common
stock exceeds the exercise price. As of December 31, 2003, as a result of the Series A and Series B preferred
stock sales, the warrants were adjusted to allow the holders to purchase up to 365,000 shares of common stock.
The warrants expire on September 26, 2007. Based on our early stage of development, its limited resources, and
the preferences of the preferred stock, we believe that the fair value of the underlying shares of common stock
did not exceed the exercise price of the warrants at December 31, 2003,
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From January through May 2004, in conjunction with the sale of Series B preferred stock, the shares of '
common stock issuable upon exercise of the warrants were adjusted up 1o 732,300 shares. Based on subsequent

- financing activities and the price of our [PO, we believe that the estimated fair value of the 732,300 shares
" exceeded the $1.00 exercise price of the warrants and, as a result, we recorded stock-based compensation in

general and administrative expense in the amount of $19,405,950.
On September 2,2004, in COﬂ_]UI'lC[lOrI with the sale of Senes C preferred stock, we and our two founders
amended the terms of our warrant agreements. In exchange for relmqunshmg any future anti-dilution rights, the
number of underlying common shares that could be purchased u'nder the terms of the warrants was increased and
fixed at 1,285,657, up from 732,300. Since all of the warrants were previously variable, we recorded additional
stock-based compensation in general and administrative expense of $14,663,966 based on the estimated fair
value of the underlying common stock on September 2, 2004 for a total of $34,069,916. Since the number of
warrants became fixed at September 2, 2004, no additional compensation has been recorded.

Other Warrants

In May 2004, as compensation for fundraising efforts related to the sale of Series B preferred stock, we
issued to BioVen Advisory, Inc. a warrant to purchase 50,000 shares of common stock with an exercise price of
$10.00 per share. The warrant was valued at the $250,000 cash value of the services performed. The warrant
issuance had no net impact on the consolidated financial statements because the transaction resulted in both a
charge and a credit to additional paid-in capital.

Stock Options

We grant options to our employees, directors and consultants under the 2004 Plan, the successor to the 2000
Plan.. . : . )
5' ‘ ) H \ t

2000 General Stock Incentive Plan

'
b

In September 2000, we adopted our 2000 General Stock Ingemwe Plan (the “2000 Plan") under whnch '
incentive stock options could be granted for 200,000 shares of common stock to our officers and key ernployees
Stock options have been granted with an exercise price of $10. 00 per share and vest 25% after the first year of

service from the grant date, with'the remaining shares vesting in equal monthly instaliments over the subsequent

36 months of service. An employee may exercise stock options prior to vesting in which case we have the right to
repurchase the unvested shares at the original exercise price if the employee is terminated before vesting in all
shares occurs.

Following the vesting period, options are exercisable unti! the earlier of 90 days after the employee’s
termination with us or the ten-year anniversary of the initial grant, subject to adjustment under certain conditions.
We have the right to purchase all of those shares that the employees have or will acquire under these stock
options. The purchase price for any vested shares repurchased will be the greater of the fair market value of such
shares on the date of purchase or the aggregate exercise price for such shares.

At December 31, 2006, options to purchase a total of 95,000 shares of common stock were outstanding

under the 2000 Plan at a weighted average exercise price of $10.00 per share. No additional options have been or
will be issued under the 2000 Plan subsequent to our [IPO. .
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2004 Stock Incentive Plan

In connection with our IPO, we adopted our 2004 Stock Incentive Plan (the “2004 Plan™), ‘which was
intended to serve as the successor program to our 2000 Plan. The 2004 Plan became effective upon the .
completion of our IPO-in February 2005. -

The 2004 Plan is administered by our compensation commmittee and provides for the grant of (i) options to
purchase shares of common stock, (ii)-restricted stock, (iii) stock appreciation rights and (iv) stock units.
Incentive stock options may only be granted to employees. Nonstatutory stock options and other stock-based ,
awards may be granted to employees non-employee directors, advisors and comultams :

The number of shares reserved for issuance under the 2004 Plan will be increased on the first day of each of
our fiscal years from 2006 through 2014, with the first such increase occurring on January 1, 2006, by the lesser
of: (i) 100,000 shares; (ii) 3% of our outstanding common stock on the last day of the immediately preceding
fiscal year; or (iii) the number of shares determined by our Board of Directors.

Options granted to optionees other than non-employee directors generally vest morilhly over four years. The
exercise price of an incentive stock option shall not be less than 100% of the fair market value at.the time of
grant and the exercise price of a nonstatutory stock option shall not be less than 85% of the fair market value at
the time of grant.

Fully vested automatic grants of nonstatutory stock options wili be made to non-employee directors inan
initial amount of 1,000 shares upon first becoming a member of our board of directors. Immediately after each of
our regularly scheduled annual meetings of stockholders, each non-employee director will be automatically
granted a nonstatutory option to purchase 1,000 shares of our common stock, at 100% of the fair market value at
the time of grant, provided that the director has served on cur board for at least six months. Each annual option
will be fully vested and exercisable on the date which is six months after the date of grant.

The plan terminates ten years affer its initial adoption by the Board of Directors, unless earlier terminated by

the Board of Directors. The Board of Directors may amend or terminate lhe plan at any tlme subject to
stockholder approva] where required by appl:cable law.
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A summary of the changes in options outstandmg under the 2000 Plan and 2004 Plan durmg the year ended

Dccembcr 3l 2006 is as follows:'

K

Number of Shares Range Weighted Average
Balance at December 31,2003 ....................... 49,400 $ 1000 $10.00
SGranted L e 116,000 3 10.00° $10.00
Exercised .. ... s ' — 3 10.00 $10.00
w—— ~=——Cancelled— T T T ST T T -+ ~(10,400) - —-$ --—10.00--- - $10.00 ~- -
Balance at December 31,2004 ......: e " 155,000 155,000 5 10.00 - $10.00
Granted ... . ... ... e . 352,000 $13.80-$33.10 $26.27
Exercised .. ... ... - —, —
Cancelled ... ... (34584) § 10.00 . %1000
Balance at December 31,2005 oot 472,416 $10.00-$33.10 $22.15
Granted ..................... [N 1,702,391 $ 9.73-$34.20 $10.56 - '
Exercised ... ...t 1 (1,400 $ 10.00 $10.00
Cancelled ....... ... . i i (135,116) $10.00-$33.10 $20.44
Balance at December 31,2006 .............covunu... 2,038,791 $ 9.73-$34.20 $18.50
Exercisable at December 31,2004 . ................... . 65,219 $ 10.00 $10.00 .
Exercisable at December 31,2005 . ................... 130,219 $10.00-$33.10 $13.75
Exercisable at Decc_mberjl, 2000 . ..i - 362,731 3 9.73-$34.20 $‘l4.45
. i ‘ :
!
;
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© The following table summarizes information about stock options outslandmg under our 2000 P]an and 2004
Plan at December 31, 2006 .

[

Weighted : Weighted

average Weighted ' average Weighted
remaining average remaining average
- contractual life of  exercise price contractual life of  exercise price
Exercise Options options outstanding . of options Exercisable exercisable options  of exercisable

price ' outstanding (in years) __outstanding options (in years} options
$9.73 1,308,291 99 $ 973 59,094 9.9 "$ 973
$10.00 ", 95,000 ) 6.5 ‘ $10.00 71,927 6.3 ) "$10.00
$1090 . 3,600 25 - $10.90 3600 9.5 : “$10.90
$11.30 | 10,000 9.6 $11.30 : 6,667 96 “$11.30
$11.50 28,000 9.5 . $11.50 14,083 ‘95 . $11.50
$11.60 215,500 ) 9.0 ' $11.60 . 68,644 ' 9.0 $11.60
$13.40 23,000 8.2 $13.40 5,500 9.4 $13.40
$1350 3,000 94 . $13.50 3,000 ' 94 - $13.50
$13.80 55,000 89 $13.80 55,000 8.9 . $13.80
$14.90 21,000 ' 9.0 $14.90 13,083 9.0 $14.90

$16.50 . 2,000 86 $16.50 2,000 8.6 $t6.50 -
$2260 - 20,400 9.6 $22.60 1,925 9.6 ~'$22.60
$23.40 82,500 i 89 $23.40 20,625 . 8.9 ' $23.40-
" $33.10 137,500 89 $33.10 34,375 - 89 $33.10
$34.10 125,000 9.7 T $34.10 2,083 9.7 = $34.10
$34.20 i 9,000 9.5 $34.20 1,125 95 $34.20-

2,038,791 ‘ 9.5 $18.50 362,731 86 ' $i4.45

The aggregate intrinsic value based on the closing price on the Nasdaq-Global Market of options exercised
during the year ended December 31, 2006, outstanding and exercxsab]e at December 31, 2006 was approximately
$4,592, $5,396, 281 and $607,863, respectlve]y :

Common Stock Reserved for Future Issuance

The following table summarizes common stock reserved for future issuance at December 31, 2006:

Common stock warrants e S P 777,076
Common stock options outstanding (under the 2000 and 2004 Plans) .. ................ 2,038,791
Common stock options authorized for future grant (under the 2004 Plan) .............. P 186,209

' 3,002,076

6. Income Taxes

From January 1, 2001 through March 31, 2003, we were included in the consolidated federal tax return of
Tanabe Holding America, Inc., the U.S. holding company of Tanabe Seiyaku Co., Ltd., and filed a combined
California tax return from Januvary 1, 2001 through December 31, 2003. Under a tax allocation agreement with
Tanabe Holding America, Inc. and affiliates effective January 1, 2001, the combined tax liability was allocated
based on each company’s share of taxable income, Subsequent to March 31, 2003 and December 31, 2003,
respectively, we file on a stand alone basis for federal and California income tax purposes.

38




:
MEDICINOVA, INC.

(a development stage company)

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
[

The significant components of our &efened income taxes at December 31, 2006 and 2005 are as follows:

' . December 31,

' 2006 2005
Deferred tax assets: ! : :
Net operating loss carryforwards . ............. ... ... e $ 31,441,000 $ 18,683,000
Capitalized licenses ...... P e LA 1,982,000 . 1,708,000
Research tax credits .. ....ooeveeennns. e e . 2,869,000 ' 1,283,000
Stock-based compensation .......................... [ . 651,000 —_
Other,net .......... A PRI 136,000 42,000
Net defermed taX 88515 .o\ vvr et ettt et e et ieae e, 37,086,000 21,716,000
Less valuation allowance ........... ... ... .. o ol | (37,086,000)  (21,716,000) -

; : 8 — 3 —

We have established a valuation allowance against our deferred tax assets due to the uncertainty that such
assets will be realized. Management periodically evaluates the recoverability of the deferred tax assets. At such
time as it is determined that it is more likely than not that deferred tax assets will be realizable, the valuation

allowance will be reduced.

'
1

At December 31, 2006;-we had federal and California net operating loss carryforwards of approximately
$78,504,000 and $68,941,000, respectively. The federal net operating loss carryforwards begin to expire in 2022,
and the Califomia net operating loss carryforwards begin to expire in 2007. At December 31, 2006, we also had -
federal and California research tax credit carryforwards of approximately $2,709,000 and $246,000, respectively.
The federal research tax credit carryforwards begin to expire in 2022, and the Califernia research tax credit
carryforward does not expire and can be carried forward indefinitely. Pursuant to Section 382 and 383 of the
Internal Revenue Code, annual use of our net operating loss carryforwards may be limited if certain cumulative
changes of ownership result in a change of control of our company.

7. Employee Savings Plan

© We have an employee savings plan available to substantially all employees. Under the plan, an employee

* may elect salary reductions which are contributed to the plan. The plan provides for discretionary contributions
" by vs, which totaled $113,809, $124,781 and $87,359 and $405,046 for the years ended December 31, 2006,

2005 and 2004 and the period from September 26, 2000 (inception) to December 31, 2006, respectively.
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8. Quarterly Financial Data (Unaudited)

The following financial information reflects all normal recurring adjustments, which are, in the opinion of
management, necessary for a fair statement of the results of the interim periods. Summarized quarterly data for.
. fiscal 2006 and 2005 are as follows (in thousands, except per share data):

Year ended December 31, 2006

o . — ' _ st 2nd  3rd 4th -
Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter

Selected quarterly l'inanclal data;

Revenue................ .. e S, $ 192 § 67--% 95 §$ (90
" Total operating expenses ......... e . o 10,049 8,756 10,157 12980
Netloss ....... e e e e (8.449) (7.233)  (8.363) (11,645
Net loss applicable to common stockholders . . . . U, (8.449)  (7,233) (8,363) (11,645)
Basic and diluted net loss per common share(l) ..... P (0.85) 0.72) (0.82) {1.13)

Year ended December 31, 2605

1st 2nd rd | dth
Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter

Selected quarterly financial data: A . . _
Revenue................ e e e $ 2 % 32 $ 4 $ 729

Total operating expenses ...........c.cvvvnen.. R 5,500 8,371 7,746 9274 =
Netloss ................. N (4,839 (7,203) (6,443) (7,207)
Net loss applicable to common stockholders . .................. (4.859) (7,203) (6,443) (7,207)
Basic and diluted net loss per common share(1) ................ {0.81) 0.73) (0.65) {0.73)

(1) Eamings’ per share are computed independently for each of the quarters presented. Therefore, the sumof the

quarterly net eamnings per share wnll not necessarily equal the total for the year.
9, Subsequent Events

On January 29, 2007, we announced the public offering of 1,000,000 shares of common stock at a purchase -
. price of $12.00 per share and aggregate net proceeds of approximately $10.5 million, net of underwriting

discounts and commissions and certain other fees associated with the offering. The public offering closed on
February 1, 2007,
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Co-founder and Director, Avigen, Inc.

Co-founder and Chairman of the Board, Palatin Technologies, Inc.
Daniel Vapnek, Ph.D.

Co-founder and Director, BioArray Solutions, Inc.

Director, Avigen, Inc.

Hideki Nagao :
Director General, Departmenl of Technology and Growlh Business
at Development Bank of Japan

Jeff Himawan, Ph.D.
Managing Direclor, Essex Woodiands Health Ventures
Co-founder and Managing Director, Seed-One Ventures

Arlene Morris
President & Chief Executwe Officer, Affymax, Inc

- Director, Biotechnology Industry Organization

Alan Dunton, M.D. N
Chief Execulive Officer, Panacos Pharmaceuticals, Inc.

CORPORATE HEADQUARTERS

MediciNova, Inc.

4350 La Jolla Village Drive, Sune 950
San Diego, CA 92122

Telephone: (858] 373-1500

Fax: {858) 373-7000
www.medicinova.com

ANNUAL STOCKHOLDERS' MEETING

MediciNova's Annual Siockholders’ Meeling'will be held on Friday,
March 30, 2007 in San Diego

STOCK TRANSFER AGENT AND REGISTRAR |

Armerican Stock Transfer & Trust Company
6201 15th Avenue

Brooklyn, NY. 11219 ‘
www.amstock.com C

COMPANY COUNSEL

Pillsbury Winthrop Shaw Pittman LLP
501 Wesl Broadway, Suile 1100 . '
San Diego, CA'92101

INDEPENDENT REGISTEREb .F’UBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

Ernst & Young, LLP
4370°La Jolla Village Drive, Suite 500
San Diego, CA 92122

COMMON STOCK LISTING
Ticker Symbal: MNQV. The Nasdaq Global Market

STOCKHOLDERS' INQUIRIES

Stockholders may obtain copies or our news releases, Securities
and Exchange Comrission filings, including Forms 10-K, 10-@Q, and
B-K, and other company information free of charge by accessing
our website at www.medicinova.com. Stockholders may also contact
Bonnie Feldman, V.P. of Investor Relations, at {858] 373-8000.

FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This Annual R_ep'ort_ includes forward-looking staternents that
invalve a number of risks an uncertainties. These forward-looking
statemnents, include but are noi limited-to, discussions regarding

-our Operalmg strategy, growth siralegy, licensing and acquisitions

strategy industry, economic conditions, financial condition, liquidity |
and capltal resources, resulls of operations, the expectéd progress

" of lhe development of our product candidates; potentiat licensing,

collaboration and partnering plans, anticipated trends and
challenges in our business and the markets in which we operate,
our chpemwe position, our intellectual property protechon the
oulcome of any litigation against us, critical accounting policies and

- the |rnpacl of recent accounting pronouncements. Additional

forward looking staterents include, but are not limited to,
statements pertaining to other financial items, plans, sirategues or

" objectives of management for future aperations, our financial =

condition or prospects and any other statement that is nok
h|stor|cal fact, including any statement which mcludes the words
"may,” "might,” "will," “intend,” *should,” "could,” “can,” “would,”
"expecl,” “believe,” "eslimate,” “predict,” "potential.” “ptan,” or
similar words. For all of the foregoing staterments, we claim the
pratection of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995,
Such staternents are subject 1o a number of assumptions, risks
and unceriamnties, many of which are beyond our control, including
resulls of clinical trials, interest of potential collaborators in the
market and other risks and uncertainlies. These assumptions,
risks and unceriainties could cause our actual results to differ
materially from those implied or expressed by the forward-looking
stalemnents. These forward-looking slatements represent our
judgment as of the date this Annua! Repori. We undertake no
obligation 1o revise or updale publicly ‘any forward-looking
statements.
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